
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 24 June 2020  
6.30 pm 

Online - Virtual Meeting 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration: Opposition: 

Councillor Natalia Perez 
Councillor Fiona Smith 
 

Councillor Matt Thorley 

 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Charles Francis 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672945 
 E-mail: charles.francis@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
Members of the press and public are welcome to attend at the YouTube link below: 
 
Speaking at Licensing meetings is restricted to those who have submitted a 
representation and registered to speak. 
 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY 
 
It will be streamed via YouTube on: https://youtu.be/GX3TWX34ufo  
 
 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 15 June 2020 

https://youtu.be/GX3TWX34ufo


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee Agenda 
24 June 2020 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   ROLL-CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At the start of the meeting the Chair will carry out a roll-call of 
committee members to confirm attendance. Members will also have an 
opportunity to declare any interests. 
 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or 
any other significant interest which they consider should be declared in 
the public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the 
nature of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that 
item or as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor 
must then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   BROADWAY FOOD AND WINE, 51 FULHAM BROADWAY, 
LONDON, SW6 1AE 
 

3 - 93 



Contents                           Page  

  
1. REVIEW APPLICATION        4-5 

 
2.  CURRENT LICENCE        5 

 
3. BACKGROUND         6  

 
4. CONSULTATION         7 

 
4.1 Relevant Representations       7 

 
5.  OTHER INFORMATION        7 

 
5.1 Enforcement History        7 

 

5.2  Temporary Event Notices       8 
 

6. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS       8-9  
 

7. THE REVIEW HEARING        9-10 
 

 
APPENDICES 

  
Review application and supporting documents.…………………………………….11-21  

 
Copy of current licence and premises plan …………………………..………………22-29  

 
Copy of consent order…………………………..………………………………………………..30-32 

 

Map showing location of Premises and neighbouring  
Licensed Premises and list……………………………………………………………….......33-36  

 
Copy of representation in support of review application from  

Doug Love, LBHF Senior Trading Standards Officer………………..............37-40  
 

Copy of representations in support of the review application  
from Tom Stewart, Metropolitan Police Officer ………………………………………41-46 

 
Copy of the previous review application and Licensing Committee 

Decision ..…………………….................................................................47-84  
 

Special Licensing Policy for Fulham Area………………………………………………..85-86  
 

Relevant paragraphs of the revised guidance issued by the Secretary of 

State…………………………………………………………………………………………………………87-93 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



1.  REVIEW APPLICATION  

  
On the 5th May 2020, an application for a review of a premises licence 

under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 was served by Mr Adrian 
Overton on behalf of the Licensing Authority. The review application is in 

respect of the premises known as Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham 
Broadway, London, SW6 1AE.  At the time the application was received, 

Mr Thayalan Ratnam was the licence holder.  
  

The application for a review of the premises licence was made on the 
grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of public 

nuisance and the protection of children from harm following continuous 
breaches of licence between January 2020 and March 2020.  

 
This is the second review submitted by the Licensing Authority in relation 

to this premises. The first review was submitted in October 2018 due to 

persistent breaches of licence conditions in 2017 and 2018. Additionally, 
during this period the premises was found to have sold alcohol to a child 

and was also found with non-duty paid alcohol on the premises.  
Consequently, the licence was revoked on the 5 December 2018 by the 

Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 

An Appeal was lodged against this decision and subsequently discussions 
were held between all parties. The Licensing Authority were advised that 

the occupiers (Mrs Nageswary Shanmugaratnah and Mr Suganthan 
Sinnathurai) who had committed the offences in 2017 and 2018 would no 

longer be involved in the business in the future.  As a result of this 
agreement, the Licensing Authorly agreed for a consent order to be 

drafted with a number of conditions attached. One specifically prohibited a 
number of individuals having any involvement in the businesses in the 

future. 

 
A visit was undertaken at the premises on the 21st January 2020 and it 

was noted that Mrs Nageswary Shanmugaratnah was seated behind the 
counter at the premises.  Mr Murigesu, who was said to be in charge of 

the premises at the time of this visit was unable to demonstrate that the 
CCTV system was operational.  This is contrary to condition 6 of the 

premises licence. An inspection sheet was left at the premises as a 
warning letter.  

 
On the 6th February 2020, a further inspection was carried. At the time of 

the visit Mr Kirubahapan Murigesu was  responsible for the premises. Mr 
Murigesu was still unable to use the CCTV system. The licensing officers 

accessed the CCTV system themselves and noted that on the 21 January 
2020, Mrs Nageswary Shanmugaratnah was behind the counter and seen 

serving customers.   

 

Page 4



 

Additionally, the footage showed Mrs Shanmugaratnah purchasing alcohol 
over the counter from an unknown individual whom the police 

subsequently confirmed to be known as a shop lifter in the Fulham area. 
Mr Murigesu confirmed that Mrs Shanmugaratnah worked at the premises. 

An inspection sheet was left at the premises as a warning letter.  
 

Breaches of conditions 15, 16, 17 and 23 were subsequently identified as 
having taken place on the 21st January 2020. Subsequently, Mr Ratman 

was requested to attend a meeting on the 10th  February 2020 and to 
bring CCTV footage for the 14th , 21st, 24th and 25th January 2020.  Mr 

Ratnam was additionally requested to bring to the meeting all signed and 
dated records demonstrating staff training outlined in the condition.   

 
On the 10th February 2020 Mr Ratnam attended the meeting without the  

CCTV footage and satisfactory training records. This is contrary to 

conditions 6 & 19 attached to the licence.  
 

Further requests for CCTV footage were made for additional dates in 
February. To  date the CCTV footage has not been received. 

 
The licensing authority is of the view that this premises appears to 

operate with a complete disregard for the law and the licensing objectives.  
Additionally, it appears that the previous occupiers are still involved in the 

premises contrary to the consent order and condition 23 attached to the 
licence. The premises are situated in the Cumulative Impact Area and the  

continued operation of this premises is having an adverse impact on the 
licensing objectives.   

  
The Licensing Authority therefore recommends that that the Premises 

Licence be revoked. 

 
A copy of the review application and supporting documentation can be 

seen on pages 11-21 of this report.  
 

 2.    CURRENT LICENCE  
  

The premises currently operate under a premises licence which permits the 
following licensable activities:  

 
Sale of alcohol – Off the premises   

Monday- Sunday  08:00 -23:00  
 

Hours the premises are opened to the public 
Monday- Sunday  08:00 -23:00 

 

Page 5



A copy of the current premises licence can be seen on pages 22-29 of this 

report. 
  

3.    BACKGROUND  
  

Records show that in respect of the premises, the premises licence was 
granted on the 14th April 2011. At the time, the premises licence holder 

was Convenience Store Retailing Ltd.  
 

On 3rd February 2015 Mrs Thurka Jeyakumar submitted an application to 
transfer the premises licence from Convenience Store Retailing Ltd to Mrs 

Thurka Jeyakumar and submitted an application to vary the Designated 
Premises Supervisor (DPS) to Mrs Thurka Jeyakumar on 5th February 2015. 

 
On 28th November 2017 Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai submitted an 

application to transfer the premises licence from Mrs Thurka Jeyakumar to 

Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai and submitted an application to vary the 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) to Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai. 

 
On the 12th October 2018, The Hammersmith and Fulham Council 

Licensing Authority called the premises licence for review on the grounds 
of the prevention of crime and disorder, the protection of children from 

harm and  public safety. The Committee revoked the premises licence.  A 
copy of the review and subsequent Committee decision can be seen on 

pages 42-79 of the report. 
 

On 04 September 2019, Ms Gill Sherratt of Licensing Matters Limited, 
submitted an application to transfer the premises licence from Mr 

Suganthan Sinnathurai to Thayalan Ratnam and submitted an application 
to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) to Thayalan Ratnam. 

  

The premises operate as a convenience store. The main access to the 
premises is located on Fulham Broadway. A plan of the premises can be 

seen on page 29 of this report.  
  

The premises are located in Fulham Broadway in the cumulative impact 
area. There is a mixture of both residential and commercial premises 

within the area. A map showing the location of the premises and 
neighbouring licensed premises can be seen on pages 33-34 of this 

report.  
  

There are several options for transport away from the area including buses 
and taxis which run from in and around the Fulham Broadway area.  

Fulham Broadway tube station is one-minute walk away from the 
premises.  

 

 

Page 6



 

 
 

 
4. CONSULTATION  

  
A public notice was displayed by the Council near the premises. A further 

public notice was displayed by the Council at Hammersmith and Fulham 
Town Hall.  Details of the application were also published on the Council’s 

Web Site and also sent to the local Ward Councillors. 
  

A notice of review was served on the premises licence holder and all the 
statutory responsible authorities as required by regulation.   

  
4.1  Relevant Representations  

 

   The licensing section received a representation in support of the review 
application from Mr Doug Love, Senior Trading Standard Officer. Mr Love 

undertook a check of the premises alcohol stock on 28th January 2020 and 
noted that there were several types of wine that were supermarket own 

brands. At the meeting on 10th February 2020 Mr Love stated that he 
handed a letter to Mr Ratnam requiring invoices to be produced for the 

‘own brand’ wines that he had seen.   At the point of writing his comments 
Mr Love stated that he had not received the requested invoice. 

  
 Mr Love recommends that the premises licence be revoked. 

 A copy of this representation can be seen on pages 35-38 of this report. 
 

The licensing section received a representation in support of the review 
application from PC Tom Stewart, London Metropolitan Police .  PC Stewart 

was also on the visit made to the premises on 21st January 2020. PC 

Stewart states that  following intelligence received that items stolen from 
Wilko were believed to be sold to the premises, his colleagues  PC Alex 

Kalisz and PC Day-Smith attended the premises on 4th March 2020.  
During the visit to the premises, officers noted several products on the 

shelves that had security stickers attached to them including washing 
tablets/powders and fabric softener. The location of the tags matched the 

same location that Wilko placed the security tags on the same products.  
 

PC Stewart recommends that the premises licence be revoked. 
A copy of this representation can be seen on pages 39-41 of this report.  

 
5. OTHER INFORMATION   

  
5.1 Enforcement History  

  

 See review application and appendices. 

Page 7



  

 
 

 
5.2  Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)   

 
No TENs have been submitted in respect of this premises in the past 

twelve months. 
  

6. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS  
  

6.1 It is the Council’s duty under the Licensing Act 2003 to determine the 
review with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives; Prevention 

of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and the 
Protection of Children from Harm.  

  

6.2 In reaching a decision, the Council must have regard to the Council’s 
adopted   Statement of Licensing Policy (“SLP”) and the guidance issued by 

the Secretary of State under section 182 Licensing Act 2003.  
  

6.3 The revised guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Guidance”) contains advice in paragraphs 

11.16 to 11.28 in relation to the review of a premises licence. Paragraphs 
11.16 to 11.28 of the revised Guidance can be seen on pages 82-88 of this 

report.   
  

6.4 The Council’s own SLP gives guidance concerning the review of a premises 
licence.    

  
6.5  Section 21.1 page 36 of the SLP states that the Act describes two “groups” 

that may make representations to applications and may apply for an 

existing premises licence or club premises certificate to be reviewed by the 
Licensing Authority. These groups are Responsible Authorities and “Other 

Persons”.  
  

6.6  Section 21.2 page 36 of the SLP states that “Other Persons” means any 
individual, body or business who is affected by the operation of a licensed 

premises regardless of their geographical location. Although they may be 
in any geographical position, any representation they make must be 

relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives, and must not be 
considered to be frivolous or vexatious in nature. Additionally, any 

application to review a premises licence must not be repetitious.  
  

6.7  Section 21.3 page 37 of the  SLP states that the Licensing Authority will, 
however, look at the geographical location of the author of any 

representation or review application received. Where the author lives or 

works a significant distance from the premises subject of an application or 

Page 8



review, this Authority will examine the content of the representation 

particularly closely to ensure that it is valid and complies with the 
requirement of the Act.  

  
 

 
6.8 Section 21.5 page 37 of the SLP states that at any stage, following the 

grant of a premises licence, a Responsible Authority, such as the police or 
the fire authority, or other persons, may apply for a licence to be reviewed 

because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the 
four Licensing Objectives.  

  
  6.9 Section 21.6 page 37 of the SLP states that a licence may be reviewed           

 where it is alleged that the Licensing Objectives are not being promoted            
 and there is evidence to show this. The Licensing Authority will regard          

 applications for the review of any premises licence particularly seriously          

 where they involve evidence of:  
  

• Incidents of disorder;   
• Instances of public nuisance where warnings have been disregarded;   

• Serious risks to public safety which the management is unable or 
unwilling to correct; and  

• Frequently operating outside permitted hours.  
  

7. THE REVIEW HEARING   
  

In determining this application, the Committee must have regard to the 
representations and take such of the following steps as it considers 

necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are:  
  

(a) Take no further action.  

(b) Modify the conditions of the licence.  
(c) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.  

(d) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.  
(e) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.  

(f)  Revoke the licence.  
  

Where the Committee takes a step mentioned in (b) or (c) above, it may 
provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such 

period (not exceeding three months) as it may specify.  
  

In making its decision, the Committee must act with a view to promoting 
the licensing objectives:  

  
 the prevention of crime and disorder  

 the prevention of public nuisance  

 public safety  

Page 9



 protection of children from harm  

  
It must also have regard to its own SLP and the Guidance.  

   
 

 
If the Committee is minded amending the licence, conditions may be 

attached to the licence to alleviate the concerns raised through 
representations; nevertheless, this is a matter for the Committee to 

determine in light of the above matters, and any others it considers 
material.  

Page 10



 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

 

I  The Licensing Authority - Hammersmith and Fulham Council  

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club 

premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 

Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

 

Broadway Food and Wine  

51 Fulham Broadway  

Post town  London     Post code (if known) SW6 1AE 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

 

Mr Thayalan Ratnam 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

 

2019/01450/LAPR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



Part 2 - Applicant details  

 

I am 

 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible  

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)  

or (B) below) 

  

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates  

(please complete (A) below) 

    

 

 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       

 (for example, Rev) 

 

Surname  First names 

   

 
 Please tick ✓ yes 

I am 18 years old or over 

 

 

 

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises 

address 

 

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 

(optional)  

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 

      

Telephone number (if any) 

      

E-mail address (optional)  

      

 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 

 Name and address 

 

The Licensing Authority 

Hammersmith and Fulham Council 
45 Beavor Lane,   

Hammersmith  

W6 9AR 

Telephone number (if any) 

0208 753 1081 

E-mail address (optional)  

licensing@lbhf.gov.uk 

  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

 

 Please tick one or more boxes ✓ 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  

2) public safety  

3) the prevention of public nuisance  

4) the protection of children from harm  
 

Page 13



Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

 

Background 
 
Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway is located in the Fulham 
Broadway Cumulative Impact Area which is one of two special policy areas in 
the borough. A study which led to the introduction of the policy showed that 
the area suffers adversely from anti-social behaviour caused by a saturation 
of licensed premises selling alcohol. Any operators in this area are expected 
to manage their premises effectively so as not to add to these pre- identified 
problems such as street drinking and rowdy / intimidating behaviour. The 
premises is also located within half a mile of Chelsea football stadium and as 
such has a number of conditions attached to their licence to ensure that 
alcohol is not sold to football fans directly before and after matches.  
 
In October 2018 the licensing authority submitted a review for this premises 
asking for revocation of the licence. The review was submitted because of 
persistent breaches of licence conditions in 2017 and 2018. The breaches 
continued despite multiple warnings from the licensing authority and a 
recorded interview under caution. During this period the premises was found 
to have sold alcohol to a child and was also found with non duty paid alcohol 
on the premises.  
 
As a result of this review a hearing was arranged for the 5th December 2018. 
At this hearing the licence was revoked. A copy of the report for this hearing is 
available as Annex 1 to this report. The decision letter is also available as 
Annex 2. 
 
In February 2019 the licence holder (Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai) appealed this 
decision. Before an appeal hearing took place a representative of the licence 
holder (Ms Gill Sherratt) asked to meet with the licensing authority and other 
responsible authorities to discuss a proposal to sell the business. The 
prospective new owner, Mr Ratnam, also attended the meeting along with Ms 
Sherratt. Ms Sherratt asked if we would consider agreeing to the premises 
keeping its licence if the premises was sold to Mr Ratnam and if the licence 
was transferred to the same individual. A number of new conditions which 
were to be included on the licence, if this arrangement was agreed to, were 
also suggested. One of these conditions prohibited the current licence holder 
(Mr Sinnathurai) and his mother in law (Mrs Nageswary Shanmugaratnah – 
who was present when many of the offences occurred in 2017 /18), being on 
the premises or being in any other way involved in the operation of the 
premises.  
 
After carefully considering this proposal the licensing authority agreed to the 
compromise primarily on the principle that it was giving an opportunity to a 
completely new operator in borough. The consent order was signed on the 
20th September 2019. The amended licence including the agreed additional 
conditions is included as Annex 3. A copy of the consent order is also 
included as Annex 4. 
 

Page 14



 
On the 21st January 2020 the licensing authority carried out a number of 
inspections around the Fulham Broadway area with an officer from the Police 
licensing team. As part of these visits 51 Fulham Broadway was also visited  
and a full licensing inspection was carried out. During the inspection officers 
noted that Mrs Nageswary Shanmugaratnah was sat behind the counter at the 
premises. When asked why she was there she explained that she was helping 
out with the banking although she later stated that she was no longer involved 
with the premises. Officers were told that the individual in charge of the 
premises at the time of the visit was Mr Kirubahapan Murigesu. As such Mr 
Murigesu was asked to demonstrate that the CCTV system was operational 
and that he knew how to use it – in accordance with condition 6 of the 
premises licence. As he was unable to do this an inspection sheet was left at 
the premises as a warning letter. See Annex 5. 
 
On the 6th February 2020 at 17:00 a further licensing inspection was carried 
out at the premises by two members of the licensing team. A breach of 
condition 6 was found as Mr Kirubahapan Murigesu was again left in charge 
of the premises and was unable to use the CCTV system. On this occasion 
the officers conducting the inspection asked if they could access the system 
themselves to check if it was working correctly. Mr Murigesu agreed to this. 
Whilst reviewing footage dated 21st January 2020, Mrs Nageswary 
Shanmugaratnah was observed behind the counter and was also seen 
serving customers. Mr Murigesu confirmed that Mrs Shanmugaratnah worked 
at the premises and explained that she would be in again on Thursday that 
week. Most concerningly the footage also showed Mrs Shanmugaratnah 
purchasing alcohol over the counter from an unknown individual. The Police 
have subsequently confirmed this person was a known shop lifter in the 
Fulham area. A copy of this footage was recorded on one of the licensing 
officers phones and is included as Annex 6. An inspection sheet was also left 
at the premises as a warning letter. Annex 7. 
 
Breaches of conditions 15, 16, 17 and 23 were subsequently identified as 
having taken place on the 21st January 2020. These were included in a 
warning letter sent to licence holder and DPS Mr Thayalan Ratnam on the 20th 
February 2020. Annex 8. 
 
On the 6th February 2020 Mr Ratman (the new licence holder) was emailed 
and asked to attend a meeting on the 10th February with officers from the 
Licensing Authority, Trading Standards and the Police. On the 7th February 
2020, as per condition 6 of the premises licence, he was also asked to bring 
CCTV footage with him from the 14th, 21st and 24th / 25th January 2020. 
 
On the 10th February 2020, prior to the afternoon meeting and as per 
condition 19 of the premises licence, Mr Ratnam was additionally requested to 
bring to the meeting all signed and dated records demonstrating staff training 
outlined in the condition.  
 
On the 10th February 2020 Mr Ratnam attended the afore mentioned meeting, 
however he failed to bring along the CCTV footage and satisfactory training 

Page 15



documents as requested. This is a breach of conditions 6 and 19 and is 
outlined in a warning letter sent to Mr Ratnam on the 20th February 2020. 
Annex 8. 
 
At the meeting Mr Ratnam was asked what was happening with the 
management of the premises and why Mrs Shanmugaratnah was still working 
there. Mr Ratnam explained that she only worked there very occasionally and 
was not paid. It was suggested to Mr Ratnam that it appeared he was the 
licence holder in name only, and that Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai and Mrs 
Nageswary Shanmugaratnah were actually managing the premises. Mr 
Ratnam denied this and agreed to send through further CCTV footage to 
prove who was working at the premises.  
 
At the meeting Mr Ratnam was also asked generally about the premises 
licence in place and the conditions attached. Concerningly he was unaware of 
the conditions attached to the licence and could not name the four licensing 
objectives. 
 
On the 13th February 2020 Mr Ratnam was emailed to request footage for 
17th, 21st, 25th January 2020 and the 6th and 7th February 2020 as per 
condition 6 of the licence, and as per the meeting on the 10th February 2020. 
 
On the 17th February 2020 Mr Ratnam was emailed again to chase the 
requested CCTV footage.  
 
On the 20th February 2020, as no response was received, Mr Ratnam was 
sent a warning letter for a breach of condition 6 of the premises licence. 
Annex 8. 
 
To date we have not received a reply to this email and the footage has not 
been provided.  
 
Summary  
 
This premises appears to operate with a complete disregard for the law and 
the licensing objectives.  
 
It also appears that Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai and Mrs Nageswary 
Shanmugaratnah are still ultimately in charge of this premises and that Mr 
Ratnam is the licence holder in name only. This is contrary to the consent 
order agreed on the 25th September 2019 and specifically contrary to 
condition 23 of their new licence.  
 
By operating in this way the premises has demonstrated no regard for the 
objectives and it is the authorities view that the continued operation of this 
premises is having an adverse impact on the following objectives: 
 
• the prevention of crime and disorder  
• public safety  
• the protection of children from harm  

Page 16



 
Given all of the above we have no hesitation in respectfully requesting that  
the licence is revoked for a second time.  
 
Please note that this review is sought in line with the Council’s statement of 
licensing policy (section 21.6) which specifies that the licensing authority will 
regard applications for review of any premises licence particularly seriously 
where they involve evidence of:  
 
• Underage sales and consumption of alcohol;  
 
•  Serious risks to children;  
  
•  Use of licensed premises for storing or selling illegal alcohol or tobacco 
 or smuggled goods;  
 
•  The use of licensed premises for the sale of stolen goods;  
  
 
 

Page 17



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 

guidance note 3) 

 

All information included in the grounds for review section. 

Page 18



                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the 

premises before 

 

 

 

If yes please state the date of that application 
Day Month Year 

1 2   1 0 2   0    1  8 

 

 

 

 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 

and when you made them 

 

Please see grounds for review section. The previous review was submitted because of persistent 

breaches of licence conditions in 2017 and 2018. The breaches continued despite multiple 

warnings from the licensing authority and a recorded interview under caution. During this period 

the premises was found to have sold alcohol to a child and was also found with non duty paid 

alcohol on the premises. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

  

                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ 

yes 

 

• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 

as appropriate 

 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 

application will be rejected 

 

       
 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

 

Signature      

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Date             5th May 2020 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Capacity      Licensing Policy and Enforcement Manager 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 

associated with this application (please read guidance note 6) 

      

Post town 

      

Post Code 

      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional)       

 

Page 20



Notes for Guidance  

 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



 

P
age 33



REFVAL CPTRADEAS ADDRESS CODETEXT 
No 

Restriction 
Monday 

to Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday 

2019/01658/LAPR Whole Foods 

2 - 6 Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1AA 

Sale of Alcohol Off the 
Premises     

08:00:00 - 
22:00:00 

08:00:00 - 
22:00:00 

08:00:00 - 
22:00:00 

08:00:00 - 
22:00:00 

      
Sale of Alcohol On the 
Premises     

10:00:00 - 
21:30:00 

10:00:00 - 
21:30:00 

10:00:00 - 
21:30:00 

10:00:00 - 
21:30:00 

2019/01710/LAPR 

Broadway Bar & 
Grill -  Members 
& Roof Terrace 

Broadway Bar And Grill 
474 - 476 Fulham Road 
London 
SW6 1BY 

Playing of Recorded 
Music   

10:00:00 - 
01:30:00         

      
Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment   

23:00:00 - 
02:00:00         

      
Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises   

10:00:00 - 
01:30:00         

2019/01708/LAPR 

Broadway Bar & 
Grill - Ground & 
First Floor 

Broadway Bar And Grill 
474 - 476 Fulham Road 
London 
SW6 1BY Exhibition of a Film   

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00         

      
Performance of Live 
Music   

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00         

      
Playing of Recorded 
Music   

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00         

      
Entertainment Similar to 
Music or Dance   

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00         

      
Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment   

23:00:00 - 
01:00:00         

      
Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises   

10:00:00 - 
02:00:00         

2019/01450/LAPR 
Broadway Food 
& Wine 

51 Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1AE 

Sale of Alcohol Off the 
Premises   

08:00:00 - 
23:00:00         

P
age 34



2019/01417/LAPR 
McGettigan's 
Fulham 

McGettigan's Fulham 
1 Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1AA Performance of Dance     

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00 

      
Performance of Live 
Music     

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00 

      
Playing of Recorded 
Music     

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00 

      
Entertainment Similar to 
Music or Dance     

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00 

      
Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment     

23:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

23:00:00 - 
01:00:00 

      
Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises     

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
01:00:00 

2019/02178/LAPR   

49 Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1AE 

Sale of Alcohol On the 
Premises     

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

2005/03252/LAPRT Me Me 

565 Fulham Road 
London 
SW6 1ES 

Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises     

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

2020/00326/LAPR Taco Bell 

53 Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1AE 

Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment     

23:00:00 - 
23:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
23:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
23:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
23:30:00 

      
Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises     

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
23:00:00 

2012/00777/LAPR   

2 Harwood Road 
London 
SW6 4PH 

Sale of Alcohol On the 
Premises   

11:00:00 - 
22:30:00         

2020/00200/LAPR Five Guys 

11 Bank Buildings 
Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1EP 

Playing of Recorded 
Music   

11:00:00 - 
00:00:00         

      
Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment   

23:00:00 - 
23:30:00         

P
age 35



      
Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises   

11:00:00 - 
23:30:00         

2019/01954/LAPR Try Market Halls 

472 Fulham Road 
London 
SW6 1BY 

Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment     

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

      
Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises     

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

10:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

2019/00900/LAPR Thai Square 

563 Fulham Road 
London 
SW6 1ES 

Playing of Recorded 
Music     

12:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

      
Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment     

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

      
Sale of Alcohol On and 
Off the Premises     

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

2019/01120/LAPR Bodean's BBQ 

4 Broadway Chambers 
Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1EP 

Playing of Recorded 
Music     

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

      
Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment     

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

23:00:00 - 
00:30:00 

      
Sale of Alcohol On the 
Premises     

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

12:00:00 - 
00:00:00 

 

P
age 36



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Trading Standards 
Hammersmith Town Hall London, W6 9JU 
 
Tel:   
Email:  
Web:  www.lbhf.gov.uk 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 To:  LBHF Licensing Team 
           Date: 06/05/20 
 
           Please ask for:  Doug Love 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003: REPRESENTATIONS BY RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY 
 

Broadway Food & Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway, SW5 1AE 
Trading Standards representation to review application  

 
Statement of facts 

 
1. Following the application to review the licence made by the Licensing Authority, I wish to make the 

following representation on behalf of Trading Standards.   
 

2. After becoming aware of information that suggested the business was selling shoplifted goods, I 
undertook a check of their alcohol stock on 28th January 2020.  I did not find anything that was clearly 
incorrect, but there were several types of wine that I recognised as supermarket own brands, which I 
photographed.  I attach these photos as Appendix TS 1. 

 
3. At the meeting with the Premises Licence Holder Mr Overton refers to on 10th February, where Mr 

Ratnam exhibited very little knowledge of the business, the conditions on the licence, or the objectives of 
the Licensing Act, I handed him a letter requiring invoices to be produced for the ‘own brand’ wines that I 
had seen.  I have included a copy of this letter as Appendix TS 2. 

 
4. I have received no invoices or other contact from Mr Ratnam since this time – a breach of condition 17. 

 
 

Summary and Recommendation 

 

5. It appears that either Mr Ratnam is just a ‘front’ to allow the previous management to continue 
operating the business, or that he is dishonest, incompetent and totally unfit to be a premises 
licensee.  Either way, Trading Standards request unequivocally that the licenced is revoked. 
 

6. The fact that he has not provided invoices to show legitimate purchase of the own-label brands of 
wine I asked about, taken with the CCTV footage Mr Overton produces suggest that these were 
shoplifted items that the business had purchased to sell themselves. 

 
7. There would be no way to tell, from a visual inspection such as the one that I carried out, whether 

other goods were shoplifted products, but it is unlikely that only ‘own brand’ products were targeted 
and reasonable to assume that much more of the stock consisted of stolen goods. 

 

 
I believe this representation is consistent with the LBHF Statement of Licensing Policy and the promotion 
of the Licensing Objectives, 
 
 
 
 
Doug Love 

Senior Trading Standards Officer 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



    

 

Appendix 1 – photographs of ‘own-brand’ wines 

 

 

   

 

Tesco ‘Wine Route’ line 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lidl’s own brand ‘Deluxe’ Triple Sec 

 

 

  

Page 38



    

 

       

Finca Las Moras Shiraz  

from Co-op 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Hereford Tempranillo 

from Co-op 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 39



    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Thayalan Ratnam 
Broadway Food & Wine Ltd 
51 Fulham Broadway 
London 
SW6 1AE                                                Date:  10/02/20 

 
 
 

 

 
Dear Mr Ratnam, 
 

Invoices required 
 

I am writing to request that you provide invoices or other proof of purchase for the following brands of wine, 
which all appear to be supermarket own label.  It is unusual, in my experience, for off licences to stock 
supermarket wine and while it is not illegal I would like to satisfy myself that they were legally sourced. 
 
Wine Route – Chardonnay and Colombard Chenin Blanc (Tesco) 
 
Finca Las Moras - Shiraz (Co-op)   
 
Hereford – Tempranillo  (Co-op) 
 
Deluxe – Triple Sec (Lidl) 
 
Please provide these invoices within 14 days. 
 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
 
Doug Love 
Trading Standards 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Trading Standards  
Hammersmith Town Hall, W6 
 
Tel:  020 8753 4493 
Email: doug.love@lbhf.gov.uk 
Web:  www.lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 40



    

 
 

  
 
 
 The Licensing Authority  
Hammersmith and Fulham Council  
Clockwork Building  
45 Beavor Lane  
Hammersmith  
W6 9AR  
 

 
  

 
 
TOTAL POLICING 
The Licensing Authority 
Hammersmith and Fulham Council 
Clockwork Building 
45 Beavor Lane 
Hammersmith 
W6 9AR 
Date: 7th May 2020 
Re: Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham 
Broadway SW6 1AE 
Dear Licensing Team, 
1. I write this representation on behalf of the 
Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service 
(MPS) in support of the review application 
submitted by the Licensing Authority regarding 
the premises known as Broadway Food and 
Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway SW6 1AE. The MPS 
supports the recommendation of the licensing 
authority to revoke the premises license. 
2. The premises licence was previously revoked 
by the Licensing Sub-Committee following a 
review hearing on the 5th December 2018. This 
review was submitted by the Licensing Authority 
on the grounds of the prevention of crime 
disorder, the prevention of public nuisance, and 
the protection of children from harm licensing 
objectives. The MPS supported this review and 
submitted a supporting representation to the 
Licensing Sub-Committee recommending 
revocation of the license due to numerous 
breaches of conditions witnessed both by the 
Licensing Authority and local Police Licensing 
Officers. 
3. The decision to revoke the premises licence 
was appealed by the Licence Holder and 
subsequently a consent order was agreed 
between all parties involved. This consent order 
included the agreement that the Premises 

Date: 7th May 2020  

Page 41



    

Licence would be transferred to another 
operator, that the DPS would be varied to 
another person who had no previous 
relationship with the previous Licence Holder or 
DPS and additional conditions to be added to the 
Premises Licence including: 
TOTAL POLICING 
• Condition 23 - The premises licence holder 
shall not permit Mrs Nageswary 
Shanmugaratnah or Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai to 
be employed by the business or involved in the 
management of licensable activities at the 
premises. 
4. On the 21st January 2020 Pc Tom Stewart and 
LBHF Licensing Officer Cristina Perez visited the 
premises at approximately 18:00 hrs. Chelsea 
Football Club were playing a home match against 
Arsenal Football Club at Stamford Bridge 
Stadium, which is located a short distance from 
the premises. Observations were made by Pc 
Tom Stewart that Ms Shanmugaratnah was 
stood behind the counter, serving customers. 
This was in breach of condition 23 (see above). 
Ms should not have been working at the 
premises in any capacity. Pc Stewart asked Ms 
Shanmugaratnah why she was at the premises, 
to which she replied that she wasn’t working 
there and then she subsequently walked to the 
rear of the shop, in an attempt to look 
inconspicuous. 
5. During the visit, officers spoke to a male who 
was standing behind the counter. This male gave 
his name as Mr Kirubahapan Murigesu. Officers 
requested to view the CCTV in order to establish 
how long Ms Shansmugaratnah had been behind 
the counter and how many people she had 
served. Mr Kirubahapan Murigesu stated that he 
was unable to operate the CCTV system. This was 
a breach of condition 19: 
A staff member from the premises who is 
conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all times that 
the premises is open to the public. This staff 
member will be able to show police recent data 
footage with the minimum of delay when 
requested. This data or footage reproduction 
shall be almost instantaneous. 
6. On the 6th February 2020 Cristina Perez 
attended the premises and viewed the CCTV for 
the 21st January 2020. As the person in charge of 
the premises was not able to work the CCTV 
system, Ms Perez had to navigate it herself. Ms 
Perez noted on the footage a male enter the 
premises and appear to sell several bottles of 

Page 42



    

alcohol to Ms Shanmugaratnah, who was stood 
behind the counter. Ms Perez sent a copy of the 
footage to Pc Tom Stewart who subsequently 
identified the male via PCSO David Miller (see 
Appendix 1 for identification statement) as a 
regular shoplifter. 
TOTAL POLICING 
It is the submission of the MPS that the alcohol 
was likely to have been stolen and that Ms 
Shanmugaratnah would have been aware of this 
fact by the nature of the transaction. 
7. This one incident involves numerous breaches 
of the premises licence as well as a clear 
disregard for the law. This incident is indicative 
of the operation of the premises over the last 
two years. Further to this incident, Dedicated 
Ward Officers Pc ALex Kalisz and Pc Day-Smith 
attended the premises on 4th March 2020 
following reports from security staff at a Wilko 
store located in Fulham Broadway Shopping 
Centre, stating that they believed that items 
were being stolen from their store and were 
subsequently being sold at Broadway Food and 
Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway. 
8. During the visit to the premises, officers noted 
several products on the shelves that had security 
stickers attached to them. These included 
washing tablets/powders and fabric softener. 
The premises do not have security barriers and 
therefore there is no logical reason for the 
premises to stock products with security tags. 
The location of the tags also matched the same 
location that Wilko place the security tags on the 
same products. A statement completed by Pc 
Alex Kalisz can be seen in Appendix 2 detailing 
this further. 
9. In conclusion, it is the submission of the MPS 
that this premises is undermining the licensing 
objectives to such a degree that the Premises 
License should be revoked. 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 – Viewing and identification 
statement (Redacted) – PCSO David Miller 
Appendix 2 – Statement from Pc Alex Kalisz 
(Redacted) 
Yours sincerely 
Pc Tom Stewart 4230AW 
Hammersmith and Fulham Police Licensing Team 
(Central West Basic Command Unit) 
 

 
 
 

Page 43



 

 

TOTAL POLICING 

 
The Licensing Authority 
Hammersmith and Fulham Council 
Clockwork Building  
45 Beavor Lane 
Hammersmith 
W6 9AR 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 7th May 2020 

Re: Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway SW6 1AE 
 

Dear Licensing Team, 

1. I write this representation on behalf of the Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS) in support of the review application submitted by the Licensing Authority regarding the 

premises known as Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway SW6 1AE. The MPS supports 

the recommendation of the licensing authority to revoke the premises license. 

 

2. The premises licence was previously revoked by the Licensing Sub-Committee following a review 

hearing on the 5th December 2018. This review was submitted by the Licensing Authority on the 

grounds of the prevention of crime disorder, the prevention of public nuisance, and the 

protection of children from harm licensing objectives. The MPS supported this review and 

submitted a supporting representation to the Licensing Sub-Committee recommending 

revocation of the license due to numerous breaches of conditions witnessed both by the 

Licensing Authority and local Police Licensing Officers. 

 

3. The decision to revoke the premises licence was appealed by the Licence Holder and 

subsequently a consent order was agreed between all parties involved. This consent order 

included the agreement that the Premises Licence would be transferred to another operator, 

that the DPS would be varied to another person who had no previous relationship with the 

previous Licence Holder or DPS and additional conditions to be added to the Premises Licence 

including: 

Page 44



 

 

TOTAL POLICING 

• Condition 23 - The premises licence holder shall not permit Mrs Nageswary Shanmugaratnah 

or Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai to be employed by the business or involved in the management 

of licensable activities at the premises. 

 

4. On the 21st January 2020 Pc Tom Stewart and LBHF Licensing Officer Cristina Perez visited the 

premises at approximately 18:00 hrs. Chelsea Football Club were playing a home match against 

Arsenal Football Club at Stamford Bridge Stadium, which is located a short distance from the 

premises. Observations were made by Pc Tom Stewart that Ms Shanmugaratnah was stood 

behind the counter, serving customers. This was in breach of condition 23 (see above). Ms should 

not have been working at the premises in any capacity. Pc Stewart asked Ms Shanmugaratnah 

why she was at the premises, to which she replied that she wasn’t working there and then she 

subsequently walked to the rear of the shop, in an attempt to look inconspicuous.  

 

5. During the visit, officers spoke to a male who was standing behind the counter. This male gave 

his name as Mr Kirubahapan Murigesu. Officers requested to view the CCTV in order to establish 

how long Ms Shansmugaratnah had been behind the counter and how many people she had 

served. Mr Kirubahapan Murigesu stated that he was unable to operate the CCTV system. This 

was a breach of condition 19: 

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 

shall be on the premises at all times that the premises is open to the public. This staff member 

will be able to show police recent data footage with the minimum of delay when requested. 

This data or footage reproduction shall be almost instantaneous. 

6. On the 6th February 2020 Cristina Perez attended the premises and viewed the CCTV for the 21st 

January 2020. As the person in charge of the premises was not able to work the CCTV system, 

Ms Perez had to navigate it herself. Ms Perez noted on the footage a male enter the premises 

and appear to sell several bottles of alcohol to Ms Shanmugaratnah, who was stood behind the 

counter. Ms Perez sent a copy of the footage to Pc Tom Stewart who subsequently identified the 

male via PCSO David Miller (see Appendix 1 for identification statement) as a regular shoplifter. 

Page 45



 

 

TOTAL POLICING 

It is the submission of the MPS that the alcohol was likely to have been stolen and that Ms 

Shanmugaratnah would have been aware of this fact by the nature of the transaction.  

 

7. This one incident involves numerous breaches of the premises licence as well as a clear disregard 

for the law. This incident is indicative of the operation of the premises over the last two years. 

Further to this incident, Dedicated Ward Officers Pc ALex Kalisz and Pc Day-Smith attended the 

premises on 4th March 2020 following reports from security staff at a Wilko store located in 

Fulham Broadway Shopping Centre, stating that they believed that items were being stolen from 

their store and were subsequently being sold at Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway. 

 

8. During the visit to the premises, officers noted several products on the shelves that had security 

stickers attached to them. These included washing tablets/powders and fabric softener. The 

premises do not have security barriers and therefore there is no logical reason for the premises 

to stock products with security tags. The location of the tags also matched the same location 

that Wilko place the security tags on the same products. A statement completed by Pc Alex Kalisz 

can be seen in Appendix 2 detailing this further.  

 

9. In conclusion, it is the submission of the MPS that this premises is undermining the licensing 

objectives to such a degree that the Premises License should be revoked.  

Appendices: 

Appendix 1 – Viewing and identification statement (Redacted) – PCSO David Miller 

Appendix 2 – Statement from Pc Alex Kalisz (Redacted) 

 

Yours sincerely 

Pc Tom Stewart 4230AW 

Hammersmith and Fulham Police Licensing Team (Central West Basic Command Unit) 

Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



 

Page 79



 

Page 80



1 

   

 

 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

Decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee (“Committee”) 
5 December 2018 

 
Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway, London SW6 1AE (“the Premises”) 
 
The Committee has considered an application for the review of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 
(“the Application”). 
 
The Committee has considered the committee papers and the submissions made by all of the parties, both orally 
and in writing.  In reaching its decision the Committee has had regard and has taken into account the relevant 
legislation, the Secretary of State’s Guidance (“Guidance”) and the Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
(“SLP”). 
  
The Committee has decided, after taking into account all of the individual circumstances of this case, that it is 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to revoke the premises licence.  
 
Procedural Matters 

 
1. The application to review the Premises Licence (“the Licence”) was submitted by Mr Adrian Overton on 

behalf of the Council’s Licensing Department on the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder, 
public safety and the protection of children from harm. Mr Overton proposed revocation of the Licence.  

 
2. PC Cardwell on behalf of the Metropolitan Police submitted a representation in support of the Application 

on the grounds of all four licensing objectives 
 
3. Mr Love on behalf of the Trading Standards team supported the Application. Mr Love also proposed the 

imposition of eight conditions to the Licence and the deletion of two conditions if the Committee elected 
not to revoke the Licence. The details of the conditions are set out on pages 6 and 7 of the Report.  

 
4. Further representations in support of the Application were received by the Barclay Road Residents 

Association, Ward Councillor Belinda Donovan, HRRA Residents' Association and one local resident.  
 

5. The Premises Licence Holder, Mr Suganthan Sinnathurai (“PLH”), was represented at the hearing by Mr 
Robert Jordan, a licensing agent.   
 

6. PC Kris Cardwell and PS Tom Stewart attended the hearing on behalf of the Metropolitan Police. 
 

7. Mr Doug Love attended the hearing on behalf of the Trading Standards team. 
 
8. Councillor Donovan also attended the hearing on behalf of the local resident and the local residents 

association  
 

 
Reasons 
 

 
9. The Committee recognises that the proceedings set out in the Act for reviewing premises licences 

represent a key protection for the community when problems associated with crime and disorder, public 
safety, public nuisance or the protection of children from harm are occurring.  Representations must 
relate to the particular premises in question and must be relevant to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  The Act provides the Licensing Authority with a range of powers on determining a review 
that it may exercise where it considers them necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  In 
deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Licensing Authority should so far as possible seek to 

Page 81



2 

   

 

 

establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the representations identify.  The remedial action 
taken should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate 
and proportionate response. 
 

10. The Committee is entitled to and has taken into account local knowledge in reaching its decision.   
 
11. In submitting the Application, it was Mr Overton’s considered opinion that the prevention of crime and 

disorder, public safety and the protection of children from harm licensing objectives had been 
undermined by the operation of the Premises. Mr Overton set out in the Application and at the hearing 
details of the numerous breaches of conditions of the Licence which had taken place between September 
2017 and September 2018. The Committee noted that the PLH had been advised in a PACE recorded 
interview about the breaches of condition. Prior to this warning letter, on 8 December 2017 and 1 
December 2017 following inspections of the Premises where breaches of conditions were noted, a copy 
of the inspection sheet detailing the breaches of conditions was left at the Premises. After offences 
continued in 2018, the PLH received a second warning letter on 14 June 2018. Following this letter, 
further breaches of the Licence did occur with the most recent taking place in September 2018.  Further 
issues in connection with the Premises involved the sale of alcohol to a minor and the possession of large 
quantities of wine where duty had not been paid. The full details of the breaches are set out in the Annex 
to the Application. The Committee noted that the PLH was the licence holder when the vast majority of 
the breaches of conditions and other issues set out in the Application had occurred. 

 
12. The Police in their representation and at the hearing made clear that they were very concerned about 

the operation of the Premises which was failing to promote the four licensing objectives. The Police noted 
the location of the premises and that this was an area which suffered from anti-social behaviour. The 
Committee noted that the Premises is located in the Fulham Town Centre Area which has been identified 
as being adversely affected in terms of the licensing objectives because of the cumulative impact of the 
concentration of drink led premises. This area has a special policy relating to cumulative impact as 
provided by the Secretary of State in its guidance. The location of the Premises and its proximity to the 
Chelsea football stadium means that the Licence contains a “football related condition” which applies on 
match days when Chelsea Football Club are playing at home.  The Police were concerned that the failure 
of the Premises to comply with this condition and others given the location of the Premises showed a 
disregard to the promotion of the licensing objectives  

 
13. Mr Love in his evidence noted the history of non-compliance of conditions by the PLH and that nearly all 

of the events listed involved the PLH. The Committee noted from the evidence of Mr Love that the PLH 
had attended a recent training session offered to licence holders.  
 

14. The Committee shared similar concerns to Councillor Donovan regarding the sale of alcohol to underage 
children as well as concerns about the non-duty paid alcohol .  
 

15. The PLH via Mr Jordan advised that he was happy to accept the conditions proposed by the Trading 
Standards team. He also advised that all staff had now undertaken training on licensing related matters.  
Mr Jordan explained in respect of the PLH that it was the first premises that he had managed and that the 
issues were down to lack of experience. In relation to the employee who made the underage sale, he no 
longer works at the Premises. In relation to the warning letter, he did advise during the hearing that he 
had not received this however Mr Overton then advised that the PLH had received this.   

 
16. Whilst the PLH had agreed to the imposition of conditions proposed by the Trading Standards team, the 

Committee was not satisfied on the basis of the very real evidence in front of it nor that the imposition of 
these conditions would help to promote the licensing objectives given that from the evidence available, 
conditions had been placed on the Licence that the PLH failed to comply with and that one of the main 
concerns which led to the review was the continuous breach of conditions.  
 

17. The Committee considered that in the circumstances it would be appropriate and necessary to revoke 
the licence.  In reaching this decision the Committee was mindful of all the statutory powers available to 
it, as well as paragraph 11.20 of the Guidance which states that: 

Page 82



3 

   

 

 

 
“In deciding which powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities should so far as possible 
seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the representations identify.  The remedial 
action taken should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an 
appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.” 

 
18.  In determining this matter the Committee was particularly mindful of the advice in the Guidance at 

paragraph 11.27 which lists particular criminal activity arising in connection with licensed premises 
“which should be treated particularly seriously” and includes the use of the Premises for “the sale or 
storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol”  

 
19. Paragraph 11.28 goes on to advise Licensing Authorities that where a review arises due to the prevention 

of crime and disorder objective being undermined for any of the reasons cited in paragraph 11.27 then 
“it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously considered.”  
Paragraph 11.26 of the Guidance highlights that the licensing authority is empowered to take any 
appropriate steps to remedy the problems that have triggered the review and places a duty on the 
authority to “take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

20. The Committee was mindful that it was not determining the “criminality” of the offences relied upon by 
the Licensing Authority to bring the review, nor was it seeking to establish the guilt or innocence of the 
PLH.  Rather, its objective is to ensure the promotion of the the licensing objectives and it was incumbent 
on the Committee to take the appropriate steps to ensure that the licensing objectives are promoted.  
Furthermore, the Committee was also satisfied that it did not require an outcome of any criminal 
proceedings to determine whether the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective had been 
undermined.   
 

21. The Committee noted that the issue at the Premises did not simply involve the breach of conditions but 
included the sale of alcohol to minors as well as the possession of non-duty paid alcohol.  
 
 

22. The Committee considered that the PLH’s proposals at the hearing were reactive and that the PLH had 
not demonstrated a proactive, professional manner to address the issues to ensure the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. The Committee noted that both the Police and the Licensing Authority had sought 
to resolve the issues posed by the Premises without the need to effect a review by engaging with the PLH 
over a period of time . Instead of assisting to resolve the issues, the approach of the Licensing Authority 
did not have the desired effect as the PLH has continued to breach licensing conditions. The Committee 
did not have confidence that the situation would improve or that the licensing objectives could be 
promoted with the current operator despite what the PLH said in the meeting. The Premises had ample 
opportunity to put into effect all of the items that it was now proposing to implement from the time that 
the breaches had started but had failed to do. 
 

23. The Committee was concerned that the PLH appeared to have no real understanding or appreciation of 
the CIP and the impact of this on the operation of the Premises. On different occasions, the PLH noted 
that incidents had happened when he was not there which in the view of the Committee showed an 
unwillingness to take responsibility for events which occurred when he was responsible for management 
of the Premises.  
 

24. Furthermore, in weighing up what steps the Committee could and should take in determining this 
application, it considered that the temporary suspension of the licence would not address the serious 
issues.  The Committee noted that  Mr Love had provided a list of conditions that could be added to the 
licence if it decided not to revoke the Licence and that the PLH had accepted the imposition of the 
conditions. However, in considering whether such a course of action would be appropriate in the 
circumstances, the Committee was mindful that it could only do so if it was satisfied that those conditions 
could be complied with and it was not.  The Committee did consider whether or not it would be 
appropriate to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor but considered that many of the problems arose 
from the mismanagement of the Premises by the PLH and was not satisfied that a change to the 

Page 83



4 

   

 

 

designated premises supervisor whilst still retaining the same licence holder would suffice to promote 
the licensing objectives.  

 
25. In view of the reasons cited in this decision, it was the Committee’s considered view that it is appropriate 

and proportionate to revoke the premises licence to ensure that the licensing objectives are not 
undermined.   

 
 
26. If any of the parties are unhappy with the decision they are entitled to appeal to the magistrates’ court 

within 21 days from the date of notification of this decision. This determination does not have effect until 
the end of the period given for appealing against the decision, or if the decision is appealed against, until 
the appeal is disposed of. 
 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee  
5 December 2018 

Page 84



Annex 2 Special Licensing Policy for Fulham Area  
  
1 The Council has decided to introduce a special policy relating to cumulative impact 
as provided by the Secretary of State in the Guidance issued under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 (paragraphs 13.24 to 13.39) and the Council’s own 
Statement of Licensing policy dated November 2007 at paragraph 4.3 to the Fulham 
Town Centre Area (being the shaded area and all premises which have a principal 
form of access onto the shaded area as shown on the plan.  
  
2        “Cumulative impact” means the potential impact on the promotion of the 
Licensing Objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in 
one area.  
  
3        The Fulham Town Centre Area has been identified as being adversely 
affected in terms of the Licensing Objectives because of the cumulative impact of the 
concentration of drink led premises. There is evidence that the cumulative impact 
includes serious problems of crime, disorder and public nuisance. Having regard to 
the evidence, the Licensing Authority has been satisfied that it is appropriate and 
necessary to include an approach to cumulative impact.   The evidence for this 
special policy may be viewed on request at the Council Offices.  
  
4        Applications for new premises licences, club premises certificates or any 
variations within the Fulham Town Centre Area  that are likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact will normally be refused where a relevant representation has been 
made, unless the applicant can demonstrate that there will be no negative 
cumulative impact on one or more of the Licensing Objectives.  Accordingly, the 
presumption of refusal in this policy is not absolute and the circumstances of each 
application will be considered where a relevant representation has been made.  
  
5        The presumption of refusal does not relieve responsible authorities or other 
persons of the need to make a relevant representation. Applicants will need to 
address the special policy issues in their operating schedules. If there are no 
representations the Licensing Authority must grant the application in terms 
consistent with the operating schedule submitted.   
  
6.    The cumulative impact policy will be kept under review by the   Licensing 
Authority.  
  

Page 85



7. The geographical boundary of the proposed area 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



REVISED GUIDANCE ISSUED UNDER SECTION 182 OF THE LICENSING ACT 
2003 
 

11. Reviews  
The review process  
11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and 
club premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where 
problems associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of 
a premises licence or club premises certificate.  
 
11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing 
authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the 
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.  
 
11.3 An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the 
licensing authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the 
application, if the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also 
agree in advance that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, 
these applications are outside the formal electronic application process and may not 
be submitted via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility.  
 
11.4 In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to 
which it relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on 
nuisance or disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant 
notice of its determination, or if the police have made an application for summary 
review on the basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.  
 
11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a 
premises licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing 
authority may apply for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at 
premises and wants to intervene early without waiting for representations from other 
persons. However, it is not expected that licensing authorities should normally act as 
responsible authorities in applying for reviews on behalf of other persons, such as 
local residents or community groups. These individuals or groups are entitled to 
apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their own right if they have grounds to 
do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect other responsible 
authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of 
that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate steps where the 
basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual exploitation of 
children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is reasonable 
to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in 
which the premises are situated to make the application for review.  
 
11.6 Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and 
applies for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still 
achieved in this process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of 
interest. As outlined previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of 
acting as licensing authority and responsible authority should be exercised by 
different officials to ensure a separation of responsibilities. Further information on 

Page 87



how licensing authorities should achieve this separation of responsibilities can be 
found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 of this Guidance 
 
11.7 In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in 
respect of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be 
relevant to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the 
grant or variation of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in 
the local area relating to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and 
disorder) situation in a town centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant 
representation unless it can be positively tied or linked by a causal connection to 
particular premises, which would allow for a proper review of the licence or 
certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of complaints, including along transport 
routes related to an individual public house and its closing time, could give grounds 
for a review of an existing licence as well as direct incidents of crime and disorder 
around a particular public house.  
 
11.8 Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the 
authority may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact 
of licensed premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the authority 
may also consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating 
to cumulative impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on 
cumulative impact policies can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.  
 
11.9 Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the 
subsequent hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which 
do not amount to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at 
the hearing. Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing 
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the 
licensing authority waives this requirement.  
 
11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about 
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders 
early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible 
they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to 
address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is 
expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in 
promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be 
used to undermine this cooperation.  
 
11.11 If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a 
responsible authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local 
business or trade association), before taking action the licensing authority must first 
consider whether the complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or 
repetitious. Further guidance on determining whether a representation is frivolous or 
vexatious can be found in Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).  
 
Repetitious grounds of review  
 
11.12 A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:  

Page 88



•  a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to 
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or  
•  representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or 
certificate was granted; or  
•  representations which would have been made when the application for the 
premises licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the 
prior issue of a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a 
reasonable interval has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.  
 
11.13 Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts 
to review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence 
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an 
earlier occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be 
regarded as a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is 
recommended that more than one review originating from a person other than a 
responsible authority in relation to a particular premises should not be permitted 
within a 12 month period on similar grounds save in compelling circumstances or 
where it arises following a closure order.  
 
11.14 The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not 
apply to responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a 
review of a licence or certificate within a 12 month period.  
 
11.15 When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a 
responsible authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure 
procedures described in Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must 
arrange a hearing. The arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set 
out in regulations. These regulations are published on the Government’s legislation 
website (www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence 
holder is made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, 
any evidence supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal 
representative has therefore been able to prepare a response.  
 
Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review  
 
11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it 
may exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 
11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take 
any further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there 
is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence 
holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important 
mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and 
that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder.  
 
11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental 
health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or 
in writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address 

Page 89



concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should 
take this into account when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, 
licensing authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties which a 
licence holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker.   
 
11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers 
is appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 
•  modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by 
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
 •  exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
incidental live and recorded music exemption)10;  
•  remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider 
that the problems are the result of poor management;  
•  suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;  
•  revoke the licence.  
 
11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing 
authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the 
concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken should 
generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an 
appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that 
instigated the review.  
 
11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the 
removal and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to 
remedy a problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor 
management decisions made by that individual.  
 
11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor 
company practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises 
supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, 
where subsequent review hearings are generated by representations, it should be 
rare merely to remove a succession of designated premises supervisors as this 
would be a clear indication of deeper problems that impact upon the licensing 
objectives.  
 
11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and 
exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a 
temporary period of up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the 
licence for up to three months could impact on the business holding the licence 
financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of 
promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a 
licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from 
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. However, it will 
always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a 
licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. 
But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority 

Page 90



should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the 
problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed insufficient, to 
revoke the licence.    
 
Reviews arising in connection with crime  
11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly 
connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of 
drugs problems at the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of 
contraband or stolen goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of 
children. Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or 
otherwise of any issue. This is a matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role 
when determining such a review is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of 
any individual but to ensure the promotion of the crime prevention objective.   
 
11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and 
they are not part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why 
representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed 
pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the 
conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for 
the licensing authority to determine whether the problems associated with the 
alleged crimes are taking place on the premises and affecting the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. Where a review follows a conviction, it would also not be for the 
licensing authority to attempt to go beyond any finding by the courts, which should 
be treated as a matter of undisputed evidence before them.  
 
11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the 
premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what 
steps should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal 
activity or associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the 
best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite 
full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, 
the licensing authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the 
problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the 
wider community and not those of the individual licence holder.  
 
11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 
premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the 
licensed premises:  
•  for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 
1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;  
•  for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;  
•  for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, 
which does considerable damage to the industries affected;  
•  for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on 
the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime 
of young people;  

Page 91



•  for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; •  by organised groups of 
paedophiles to groom children; •  as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, 
particularly by gangs; 
•  for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; •  for 
employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration 
status in the UK;  
•  for unlawful gambling; and  
•  for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.  
 
11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office 
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are 
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter such 
activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that 
the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used 
to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first 
instance – should be seriously considered.  
 
Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal working 
compliance order  
11.29   Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the 
legislation, for the review of a premises licence following a closure order under 
section 80 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal 
working compliance order under section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 
2016. The relevant time periods run concurrently and are as follows:  
•  when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a 
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review – the determination 
must be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is 
received;  
•  the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after 
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;  
•  notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first 
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice 
and the start of the hearing).  
 
Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol to children  
 
11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate 
responsibly and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under 
the age of 18 at the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 
25 scheme). Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to 
take a proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol 
within very quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not 
followed policy and conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, 
where persistent sales of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is 
apparent that those managing the premises do not operate a responsible policy or 
have not exercised appropriate due diligence, responsible authorities should 
consider taking steps to ensure that a review of the licence is the norm in these 
circumstances. This is particularly the case where there has been a prosecution for 
the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been given under section 

Page 92



169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing authority should 
consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate. 
 
 
 
 

Page 93


	Agenda
	3 Broadway Food and Wine, 51 Fulham Broadway, London, SW6 1AE
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 5a
	Pc Tom Stewart 4230AW

	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9


